ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 21, 2014
1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice Chair
Senator Fred Dyson

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donal d O son
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar
W1 liam G anger - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Conmi ssi on on Judi ci al Conduct
Marc June - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 292(JUD)

"An Act nmaking corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
recommended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 292(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BILL NO. 170
"An Act relating to a defense to the crime of prostitution for
victinms of sex trafficking."
- MOVED SB 170 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BILL NO 176

"An Act relating to the regulation of firearns and knives by the
Uni versity of Al aska."

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 21, 2014



- MOVED CSSB 176(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 292

SHORT TI TLE: 2014 REVISOR S BI LL
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG SLATI VE COUNCI L

02/ 03/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 03/ 14 (H JUD

02/ 10/ 14 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 10/ 14 (H Moved CSHB 292(JUD) Qut of Committee

02/ 10/ 14 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 12/ 14 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) 5DP

02/ 12/ 14 (H DP: LEDOUX, FOSTER, LYNN, GRUENBERG
KELLER

02/ 17/ 14 (H TRANSM TTED TO ( S)

02/ 17/ 14 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 292( JUD)

02/ 18/ 14 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 18/ 14 (S) JuD

03/ 19/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 19/ 14 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

BILL: SB 170

SHORT TI TLE: AFFI RVATI VE DEFENSE TO PROSTI TUTI ON
SPONSOR(s): GARDNER

02/ 12/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 12/ 14 (S) JUD

03/ 14/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 14/ 14 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 17/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 17/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

BILL: SB 176
SHORT TI TLE. REG OF FI REARMS/ KNI VES BY UNI VERSI TY
SPONSOR(s): COGHI LL

02/ 14/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 14 (S) JUD

03/ 03/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 03/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 03/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 05/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 05/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 21, 2014



03/ 10/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 10/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 10/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 14/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 14/ 14 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 17/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 17/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 19/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 19/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 14 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

WLLIAM A. GRANGER, Appoi nt ee

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Governors of the Al aska Bar.

MARC W JUNE, Appoi ntee

Comm ssi on on Judi ci al Conduct

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Comm ssion on
Judi ci al Conduct.

LI SA KI RSCH, Assistant Revisor of Statutes
Legal Services

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced HB 292.

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 170.

STEVEN HANDY, Staff

Senat or Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supporting testinony on SB 170.

KELLY HOWELL, Legislative Liaison

Ofice of the Conm ssi oner
Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 21, 2014



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described the current DPS training program
on human trafficking and sex trafficking.

JARMYN KRAMLI CH, Presi dent

UAS St udent Gover nnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 176.

JESSI CA DOM NY, Vi ce-President
UAS St udent Gover nnent
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 176.

RUSSELL KELL, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 176.

M KE COONS, representing hinself

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the original version
of SB 176.

ROBERT CLI FT, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 176.

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, Chair, Al aska Libertarian Party
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 176.

BARBARA J. STRUBLE, representing herself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Asked the commttee to pass SB 176 in its
original form

MARK FI SH, representing hinself

Bi g Lake, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Asked the conmmttee to pass SB 176 in its
original form

HANS RODVI K, Intern

Senat or John Coghi |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Countered sone of the concerns that have
been raised in testinony on SB 176.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 21, 2014



CHAD HUTCHI SON, St aff

Senat or John Coghi |

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described CS for SB 176, Version Y, as the
| east restrictive alternative and a fair balance of the
el enent s.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:34:19 PM

CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Dyson, Welechowski, and Chair Coghill.
Senator McCuire arrived during the course of the neeting.

CONFI RVATI ON_ HEARI NGS

1:35:29 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL announced the first order of business would be
confirmati on hearings. He asked M. June why he wants to serve
and his history.

1:35:45 PM
MARC W JUNE, Appointee, Commission on Judicial Conduct,
Anchor age, Al aska, said this is an inportant over si ght

commi ssion regarding the conduct of nenbers of the judiciary.
This body addresses conplaints about the actions of judges and
ensures that there is a strong, ethical judiciary. He said he
| ooks forward to serving. He provided his professional
credentials as a lawer and with the Al aska Bar Association. He
concluded that service on the Comm ssion is another avenue of
public service.

CHAIR COGHI LL thanked M. June for his service. He asked what
| egi sl ators ought to know about the ethics laws that relate to
the judiciary.

1:38:33 PM

MR. JUNE explained there is a canon on judicial conduct that
lays out the rules. He shared an exanple of a Bethel judge who
was found to be biased in cases and was suspended.

SENATOR DYSON asked if any judges from Al aska were found to be
"on the take."

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 21, 2014



MR JUNE said he didn't recall any judge who was cited for
bribery. He added that there is a systemin place for judges to
recuse thensel ves when appropri ate.

1:40: 55 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked for the restrictions on what judges or their
supporters can do when advocating for retention.

MR. JUNE replied he didn't know the applicable rules regarding
the retention of sitting judges. He said he has seen judges
respond to ads requesting their non-retention.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked how the comm ssion receives a challenge to a
j udge on their conduct.

MR. JUNE said any nenber of the public can make a conpl aint
about a judge. The conplaint goes through a process to determ ne
whether or not it will go forward.

1:44: 03 PM
CHAIR COCGHI LL asked if there is a gatekeeper.

MR. JUNE said the executive director sees the conplaint first,
but does not act unsupervi sed.

1:45: 07 PM
SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the comm ttee.

CHAI R COCGHI LL thanked M. June for being willing to serve.

CHAIR COGHILL asked M. Ganger to tell the commttee his
interest in serving and what he expects to do as an appoi nt ee.

1:46:51 PM

WLLIAM A, GRANGER, Appointee, Board of Governors of the Al aska
Bar, Anchorage, Alaska, said he's a life-long Al askan and a
banker by profession. As a banker he's had consi derabl e contact
with attorneys and has enjoyed that interaction. He guessed this
woul d be his fourth appointnment to the Board of Governors of the
Al aska Bar and that he is probably the |ongest serving in the
history of the Board. He said he feels fortunate to have that
institutional knowl edge to share wth other nenbers of the
Board. The nobst inportant aspect personally is the opportunity
for public service.

1: 52: 01 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 21, 2014



CHAIR COGHI LL asked what sone of the ethical issues are that
differ fromwhat the general public would expect.

MR. GRANGER replied sone issues mght be |awers out of trust,
negl ecting their clients, not respecting Bar Association rules,
and grievances wth clients over fees.

1:53: 34 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked if a |lawer approaches the line on ethics
when he/ she m srepresents a client's spouse.

MR. GRANGER replied a nonfactual representation would be an
ethics violation and sonething the Bar Association would be
interested in |ooking into.

1:56: 44 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL asked if there was any objection to forwardi ng the
nanmes Marc June and Bill Ganger to the full l|egislature for

consi der ati on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI di sclosed he is a menber of the Al aska Bar
Associ ati on.

1: 57:19 PM
At Ease

HB 292-2014 REVISOR S BI LL

1:58:12 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL announced the consideration of HB 292. [CSHB
292(JUD) was before the conmttee.]

1:58:21 PM
LI SA KIRSCH, Assistant Revisor of Statutes, Legal Services,
Legislative Affairs Agency, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau,

Al aska, said the purpose of the Revisor's Bill is to inprove the
form of the statutes - to clean up the statutes. It does not
change any policy. The Attorney General's Ofice has reviewed
the bill and has no objections to it.

M5. KIRSCH reviewed several highlights of HB 292. A few
references have been changed. The words "adoptive child" were
changed to "adopted child." There are new nanes for a federal
bureau, there is a boiler code nane change, several instances of
"but not limted to" were renoved, a typo for "stinmulate" was
fixed, and obsolete terns were corrected. She stated that the
bill is policy neutral.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 21, 2014



2:01: 31 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL referenced Section 11 and asked if the U S. code
was changed.

MS. KIRSCH said the site changed; the code is the sane.

SENATOR DYSON expressed a desire to neet and discuss with the
di rect or about obsol ete provisions.

CHAIR COGHI LL solicited a notion.

2:03:29 PM

SENATOR DYSON noved to report CSHB 292, Version O  from
conmmittee with individual reconmmendations and attached fiscal
not e(s).

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that wthout objection, CSHB 292(JUD)
nmoved fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee.

2:04: 23 PM
At Ease

SB 170- AFFI RVATI VE DEFENSE TO PROSTI TUTI ON

CHAIR COGH LL reconvened the neeting and announced the
consideration of SB 170. "An Act relating to a defense to the
crime of prostitution for victins of sex trafficking." He said
it was the second hearing on the bill and several questions were
awai ti ng answers.

2: 06: 24 PM
SENATOR BERTA GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska
sponsor of SB 170, clarified that this is a trafficking bill

not a prostitute bill. She addressed the questions and
suggestions from previous testinony. She enphasized that this
bill is a first step and should remai n uncontroversi al .

CHAIR COGH LL said a nore conprehensive approach may be
preferable, but this bill has a chance of passing this year.

2:08: 00 PM
STEVEN HANDY, Staff, Senator Berta Gardner, Alaska State
Legi slature, said the suggestions that were proffered during the

| ast hearing were well-intended. However, the goal of this
effort is to get to the traffickers who are ruining lives. He
noted the resources for enforcenment of the bill are already in

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 21, 2014



place. Training for Jlaw enforcement and access to service
providers for victinse of sex trafficking are in place and the
bill is a strong link between those tw. He thanked the
conmittee for its efforts on the bill.

SENATOR GARDNER noted that a representative from the Departnent
of Public Safety was available to discuss trai ning.

2:10: 07 PM

KELLY HOWELL, Legislative Liaison, Departnment of Public Safety
(DPS), explained that DPS currently provides training on human
trafficking and sex trafficking at the Public Safety Training
Acadeny for new police recruits and in regional trainings for
existing officers. The training covers identification and
i nvestigation of sex trafficking crines, as wel | as
understanding the dynamcs of the crinme and how people becone
victinms. She stated that DPS believes that this current training
adequately differentiates between soneone who is actively
engaging in prostitution and soneone who is a victim of sex
trafficking.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked if this would be another descriptive el enment
in the training.

M5. HOWELL answered yes.

CHAIR COGHI LL observed that the bill wuldn't have a |arge
fiscal inpact.

He thanked the sponsor and asked about her expectations of the
bill noving forward.

SENATOR GARDNER replied that the people who testified during the
first hearing of the bill raised interesting questions. One was
that if a person is charged with prostitution, they are |isted
on CourtView even before they've had a trial. There is also a
guestion of people who have a previous history and if there
should be retroactive expungenent of that record. The other
issue is there are a series of crines that are associated wth
trafficking a victim mght be coerced into commtting, such as
shoplifting. The problem is to determine which crinmes are a
result of trafficking and which are not.

2:14:22 PM
SENATOR DYSON said trafficking under Alaska |aw doesn't nean
transporting. He asked if "induced" includes: getting hooked on

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 21, 2014



drugs, threats of deportnent, threats against famly nmenbers,
and bui |l di ng dependency.

SENATOR GARDNER agreed. She noted that some people many choose
of their own volition to becone involved in conmercial sex
trade, but the bill addresses people who have been induced in a
vari ety of ways and where soneone el se benefits.

SENATOR DYSON clarified that getting soneone hooked on drugs in
order to get them to work in the sex trade is a part of what
"induced" neans.

SENATOR GARDNER said it is her understanding that very often
that is the case.

SENATOR DYSON requested that Senator Gardner state that it is
her intention that inducenents, such as intentional addiction,
are "positive defenses" because the victimwas not acting of her
own free wll.

SENATOR GARDNER agreed that is her intention.

2:16: 55 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL said the intent is to nake an affirmati ve def ense.

SENATOR GARDNER t hanked the committee. She said this legislation
is a start and a way to better wunderstand this nmulti-I|evel
pr obl em

CHAI R COGHI LL asked for the will of the commttee.

2:17.:52 PM
SENATOR DYSON noved to report SB 170 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached zero fiscal note(s).

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that w thout objection SB 170 noved from
t he Senate Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

2:18: 26 PM
At Ease

SB 176- REG. OF FI REARMS/ KNI VES BY UNI VERSI TY

2:19:51 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL reconvened the neeting and announced the
consideration of SB 176. "An Act relating to the regulation of

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 21, 2014



firearms and knives by the University of A aska.” He invited
public testinony.

2:20: 21 PM

JARMYN KRAM.I CH President, UAS Student Body Governnent, Juneau

Al aska, testified in opposition to SB 176. He reported that
students at the Juneau canpus feel that SB 176 wll have
uni ntended consequences that wll interfere wth the nmain
purpose of the University of Al aska. Students voiced concern for
their safety and that the Board of Regents would not be able
enact policies in the best interest of students.

2:22:53 PM

JESSI CA DOM NY, Vice-President, UAS Student Governnent, Juneau

Al aska, testified in opposition to SB 176. She shared that
fellow students from rural areas are very confortable around
firearms, but don't understand why they should be on the college
canmpus. She questioned what accommopdations would be made for
high school and elenentary students who are frequently on
canpus. She urged the commttee not to pass the |egislation.

SENATOR DYSON said our form of governnment provides that rights
should only be restricted if there is a conpelling public
reason. He questioned whether there is a conpelling reason in
this instance and then if it extends to first amendnent and
fourth anmendnent rights. He further questioned whether feelings
shoul d govern the restriction of rights, particularly freedom of
speech.

MR. KRAMLICH replied that the issue is that students don't fee
conceal ed weapons have any place in the classroom

2:29: 04 PM

RUSSELL KELL, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 176. He said people are safest when they can
defend thenselves. He questioned why mllions of dollars should
be spent on an institution that ignores rights.

2:31:00 PM

MKE COONS, representing hinself, Palner, Al aska, said he
opposes the commttee substitute because it is an attenpt to
pl acate the Board of Regents that is abrogating rights. He
recommended passing the original bill.

2:33:55 PM
ROBERT CLIFT, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 176. He pointed out that students are already

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 21, 2014



around people on canpus who are arned. If the university knows,
they just ask the person to leave. He said the admnistration
enforces its policy when it sees fit and ignores it when it
doesn' t.

2:36:29 PM

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, Chair, Alaska Libertarian Party, Anchorage,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 176. He nmmintained that the
right to bear arns is a fundanental right.

2:37:29 PM

BARBARA J. STRUBLE, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska,
asked the conmittee to pass SB 176 in its original form She
concurred with the four previous speakers.

2:38: 28 PM

MARK FISH, representing hinmself, Big Lake, Alaska, asked the
committee to pass the original version of SB 176. He said it is
a public university on public land and individual rights ought
to be respected. If the wuniversity doesn't provide for the
students, they ought to be able to provide for thensel ves.

CHAIR COGHI LL closed public testinmony. He renoved his objection
and Version Y was adopt ed.

He explained that there has to be a conpelling reason to
restrict a right. Requiring a permt nmay be restrictive, but it
may be the least restrictive option. He asked his staff to
coment .

2:42: 31 PM

HANS RODVI K, Intern, Senator John Coghill, responded to some of
the concerns that have been raised in testinony on SB 176. He
said a large concern is there are K-12 students on canpus. These
students are already surrounded by adults who conceal carry
statewide. Following the university's logic, the state should
prohi bit conceal ed carry everywhere the students happen to be.

Anot her concern is that the university would be defenseless to
defend the canpus. This is incorrect because all |aws would
still stand. The bill sinply says that people would be able to
defend t hensel ves.

He maintained that the bill codifies current practice because

students and others are already exercising their fundanental
rights.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 21, 2014



He said the idea that the policy distracts from the |earning
environnment argunment is faulty because the public is already
around peopl e who conceal carry.

He turned to the argunment about the presence of drugs and
al cohol on canpus and said his research shows evidence of that
not being a problem It is a crine to conceal carry under the
age of 21.

MR. RODVIK concluded that this bill contains a proper balance
between the public safety interest of the university and two
fundanmental rights. The data shows that |awful adults who go
through the rigorous process to obtain concealed hand gun
permts will remain law abiding, wll be properly suited to
defend thenselves and others, and won't distract from the
| earni ng environnent on university canpuses.

2:48: 25 PM

CHAD HUTCH SON, Staff, Senator John Coghill Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, described the CS for SB 176,
Version Y, as the least restrictive alternative and a fair
bal ance of the el ements.

CHAIR COGH LL noted that this is the first commttee of
referral

2:49: 35 PM

SENATOR DYSON noved to [report the CS for SB 176, Version Y,
from commttee with individual recommendations and the attached
fiscal note(s).]

CHAIR COGHILL objected. He noted the legal principle is fully
debated. He said the bill has a fiscal note and will go to the
Senat e Fi nance Conmmittee.

SENATOR DYSON wi shed that the definition of |ock box was better
and that | ong guns were pernitted on canpus.

2:50: 59 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he would vote to nove the bill forward
because there are strong constitutional issues to support it. He
recalled the exanples in Uah and in Colorado wth no
i nci dences.

CHAI R COCGHI LL renoved his objection.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 21, 2014



CHAI R COGHI LL announced that w thout objection, CSSB 176(JUD)
was reported fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Conmittee.

2:52:39 PM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee

neeting at 2:52 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 21, 2014



